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ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (C.C. No. 11-80)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting on April 5th, 2011 at the Kihei Community Center Main Hall. Good
evening, everyone. Thank you for having us here this evening. At this time, I'd like to yield the
floor to Councilmember Don Couch who will provide the introduction of the Members that are
here tonight. Don.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you everybody for coming out and being willing to
talk with us. We really appreciate it. I want to introduce my fellow Committee members.
Starting from my right, Mike White from Makawao-Haiku-Paia; Councilmember Elle Cochran
from West Maui; Councilmember Gladys Baisa from Upcountry; Committee Chair Joe
Pontanilla from Kahului; Council Chair Danny Mateo from Molokai; Councilmember Michael
Victorino from Wailuku; Councilmember Robert Carroll from Hana. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Don. With us tonight we do have some Council Staff
that I'd like to introduce at this time. We do have Carla Nakata. Carla is the Legal Analyst. We
have Legislative Analyst, Scott Kaneshina; Committee Secretary, Tammy Farias [sic] ; Michelle
Yoshimura, Executive Assistant. Also sitting on to my left, last table, we do have some
Executive Assistants that support some of the Council Members that are here tonight. We do
have Adrienne Nalette, she supports Member Couch. Susan Clements, she also supports
Member Couch. Troy Hashimoto, he supports Member White. Arthur Suyama, he supports
Chairman Mateo. Sarah Dyal Freistat, she supports Member Cochran. Dana Broncheau, she
also supports Member Elle Cochran. So tonight, ladies and gentlemen, you have an opportunity
to provide your testimony in regards to Mayor Alan Arakawa's Fiscal Year 2012 Budget. The
Chair is going to provide each of you that will be providing public testimony three minutes with
one minute to conclude. So if you hear three minutes, please conclude in one minute. We would
appreciate that. When you come up to the mike, speak directly into the mike because everything
is being recorded, provide your name, organization that you represent, and then proceed with
your testimony. Once you complete your testimony if you could just stand for a few moments,
some of the members may have questions for you. So at this time, we'll begin with public
testimony. The first person to sign up for public testimony is Reverend Andrew Valentine.
Before Reverend Valentine provides his testimony if every one of us can turn off our cell phones
or put it on the silent mode. Thank you. Reverend?
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MR. VALENTINE: Good evening, Council members and audience. I come this evening . . . I'm
Reverend Andrew Valentine, I come on behalf of the Maui Wheelers and as past chair of the
Maui Commission on Persons With Disabilities. I come to encourage you to approve the budget
where it addresses the concerns of transportation, specifically Paratransit transportation, and
emphasize that we need both, MEO Ala Hou Programs, and the public transit. They actually
serve two different diversion concern groups in transportation. There are a lot of things that
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MEO can do transportation-wise for seniors and persons with disabilities in small group settings,
group pickups that by nature of design the ADA Paratransit cannot do that. And it would take
off the strain off the ADA Paratransit if MEO is allowed a budget so they can provide an
expanded Ala Hou Program and at the same time ADA Paratransit would not diminish. The
more people are aging or getting, obtaining, acquiring mobility disabilities. The only way they
got to get around is the public bus. So they can only go up in ridership and we need MEO to
offset that gross so that you're not spending more money providing short run one person runs
with the ADA where MEO, for example, if all of you were going to go to the same event, one
bus can pick you all up. ADA can't do that. If there's eight of you up here, they'd have to send
a different bus for each one because you live all apart. MEO can do a group pickup, take 'em to
the event, take 'em back home as a small group. ADA can't do that and that's why the costs is
going to buy for you to go to an event we all ride a different bus to get there, a different bus takes
us home. That's duplication of service that can be litigated a different way. I will come in to
your budget hearings earlier in the week; I noticed that Ms. Baisa brought out the fact that you
cut money from MEO last year and had to put it back at a much larger amount to make up for the
increase in Paratransit. Had you not cut MEO, that budget transaction would never had to take
place. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Reverend. Members, any questions for Reverend Valentine?
Seeing none, thank you again. Next person to testify is Ikaika Inouye-Waikiki
MR. INOUYE-WAIKIKI: Hi, Maui County Council. My name is Ikaiki I'm from Kahului and
attending Hui Malama Learning Center. Thank you for your ongoing support of our school. I'm
here tonight to ask you to support our budget line because we are a very unique school. What
makes Hui Malama different than any other program is that we have a variety of students with
diverse backgrounds and personalities. Also it brings together middle school, high school, and
GED students from all over the island not just kids from a certain district. We, as a class, have
more friends and knowledge of different towns. The intellectual and social opportunities that are
afforded to us are super fantastic. We, as individuals, not only learn academics but also a great
amount in moral and character development. Many teachers are so supportive and caring when it
comes down to education and other problems that we face in our daily life. To help that each
individual staff, teacher provides us is so outstanding that it makes me, as a student, want to push
exceeding my limits in my daily life situations. I am meeting various goals of mine in this
school due to the support and guidance of my teachers. It made a big impact on my
self-awareness on getting ahead of my peers and future life. Hui Malama surely brings
enlightenment to us as individuals and we all as a community. Thank you for supporting my
education and growth.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you again. Next testifier is Ryan Bartolome.
MR. BARTOLOME: Good evening, everyone. My name is Ryan, and I want to take this opportunity to
thank you guys for funding our program, which is MEO Youth Services. And, hopefully, we
will have more funding to come in the past years . . . I mean, in the next years. MEO Youth
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Services has always given me the drive to do something, especially with many hands-on work
experiences. It helps us do more than sit down and socialize with one another . . . although we
love to do that. We also love to work in the community and to be able to be part of the Tobacco
Coalition. It helps us to be more aware and to be more concerned with our community And us
being advocates we'll be working together to rally and promote a smoke-free environment such
as beaches, parks, and smoking in cars with minors. Being in this program has helped me grow
to be part of the community and to be more confident and to be involved in what we can say or
do to make the community better. I would like to thank you guys again for supporting our
program and the transportation. Thank you. Good night.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Next testifier is Courtney Lau Hee followed by Clayton Gomes.
MS. LAU HEE: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget Committee. My name is
Courtney Lau Hee, I'm 13 years old and I go to Maui Waena Intermediate School as an 8th
grader. I've been in MEO for two years and this will be my third. I would like to share with you
a little bit of how MEO has changed me to the person I am today. Before I came to MEO I was
shy and I never worked hard. But now since I became a participant I started socializing with
others and made new friends. I started working harder than I did before because the activities
we're doing such as planting kalo, making gardens, and clearing away trees to make taro patches.
I also enjoy doing community activities with other youths. In MEO, I learned about cyber
awareness and how you can't trust people too easily. You never know who is on the other side
of your computer or phone. This lesson has changed me because before we talked about cyber
awareness I used to talk to unknown numbers and trusted people I hardly knew. Now, I am more
aware of what can happen when you trust someone that you don't know. It may possibly be a
predator. With the skills and knowledge I've learned at MEO Youth Services makes me feel
good to be a part of something. I have the confidence that I can make a difference. In closing, I
would like to thank you for supporting MEO Youth Services and transportation. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Clayton Gomes followed by Robert Shiffer.
MR. SHIPPER: Good evening, my name is Robert Shiffer. I go to Kihei...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you're next. Mr. Gomes. Yeah, he's first. I know you're really anxious
and nervous.
MR. GOMES: My name is Clayton Gomes and I'm talking on behalf of the B.E.S.T. Program. I want
to thank you guys for giving them the funds because it has helped me transition out of prison. I
mean, for me, they help me buy clothes for work, shoes . . . my tools because during a stretch
you come out with nothing. And for start all over is really hard because outside nobody here to
help us. And we get people like Varna who goes out of her way to help people like us. I mean,
we did stuff that we not suppose to do so that's why I when end up in there, but the B.E.S.T.
Program has helped me out a lot, and I hope you guys can still fund that program because get
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plenty other bruddas coming out. And all of us we can change. You know we just had a crooked
life before. Now things are a lot better and I'm getting together with my family and, you know,
it's hard but at least better than being in prison. So, you know, I hope you guys can continue the
funding for the B.E.S.T. Program because it's going to help a lot of us. Thank you, guys.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Gomes? Seeing none, thank
you.
MR. GOMES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Robert. Robert Shiffer followed by Kamiki Carter.
MR. SHIFFER: Good evening. My name is Robert Shiffer. I go to Kihei Charter School and I'm here
on behalf of the MEDB. We're a youth organization. We go all around Maui County. I've seen
a lot of places in my experience that I would never have seen otherwise if I hadn't been in the
group. We don't only do that. We also take surveys and help out around the island in a lot of
areas. We started off this year by helping a fundraiser at the Grand Wailea. We were helping . .
. not only set it up, we helped with the auctions and we also after that went to the County Fair
and took public opinion surveys based on how our community is doing based on our
performance and funding so and so. We also go and view many educational things. We just
went Upcountry last month and we went to an agricultural farm and we learned how the
Upcountry how it works up there. And we also visited locally-owned businesses. I've been a
member for two years now and I testified last year too and I'm proud to be a member of the
organization and . . . thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Next testifier - Kamiki Carter followed by Kamahi Carter. Directly into the
microphone, please.
MS. CARTER: Aloha, Council Members, my name is Kamiki Carter and I stand before you on behalf
of the Kihei Youth Center and MEO bus. Mahalo for supporting the Kihei Youth Center and
MEO bus. My son is Kamahi, he's 11 years old and he currently attends Lokelani Intermediate.
My husband and I both work full-time and end our work day at 4 p.m. Without the MEO bus to
provide my son with transportation to the Kihei Youth Center and the youth center providing a
safe environment for Kamahi, I could only imagine what kind of mischievous or even choices he
may have in front of him. I just would like to come before you as a mother and state, please
continue supporting Kihei Youth Center and the MEO bus because it provides my family with
the peace of mind knowing that he has an opportunity to make better choices. He's in a very
structured and safe environment. The staff there are very willing to help him with his homework
as well as willing to make sure that he has whatever opportunities is available. They continue to
support him in his homework. My son first started off the beginning of the school year with Ds
and Fs, and I just received his report card and now he's receiving As and Bs. I really do believe
that because of Kihei Youth Center and the support that they give him and the encouragement
that they give him really made a difference in his academics. So thank you again for supporting.
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I also want to talk on behalf as a Board member also with Kihei Youth Center. I am proud to be
a Board member because I believe in their philosophy and I truly can see in my son what kind of
difference it will make So, again, please support Kihei Youth Center as well as the MEO bus
transportation. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MS. CARTER: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kamahi Carter followed by Paul Mark.
MR. CARTER: Aloha, mahalo! My name is Kamahi Carter. Mahalo for supporting the Kihei Youth
Center and the MEO bus. Please continue to support Kihei Youth Center and the MEO bus so I
can have a safe place to go after school. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Paul Mark followed by Luis Rivas.
MR. MARK: Aloha. Good evening, Council and audience. I'm here as a Board member of Best
Buddies and also as a parent of a child with disabilities. My son has down syndrome and I have
him here tonight but my son is 18, goes to Maui High, lives on his own and works at Outback.
I'm not saying that to brag or to boast but I'm saying that to express to you that my biggest
challenge as a parent in raising a child with down syndrome is really publicly ignorance, and the
public's . . . just unawareness to people with disabilities. What I want you to realize is that our
disability population is a tremendous asset to this community. They do a lot of jobs in this
community that most of us wouldn't want to do. And Best Buddies I have found to be one of the
best programs to integrate people with disabilities and "normal people" so that they can
appreciate one another. My son . . . I forced the mainland school system to educate my son at the
elementary level in a general classroom. The reason being was socialization and every one of his
teachers from kindergarten to sixth grade said the same thing. At the end of the year, they said
you know the class benefitted far more than Amelio did, okay. And so I encourage you to
continue supporting Best Buddies. It is a great program. It helps to support not only our
disabled population but it also educates the "normal" population as to what children and adults
with disabilities can do. And they can do a lot if you just open your eyes. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Luis Rivas.
MR. RIVAS: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Luis Rivas and this is my colleague, Gloria Chee.
I have been working for the Maui Humane Society for almost four years. I really enjoy my
work, and the best part of this job is creating the wonderful memory at the time of adoptions by
giving comfort when someone loses their pet as well. It's like a family member for them. I want
to thank you for all the support provided to us by Maui County. You might not know of the
assistance and collaboration between the County workers and the Animal Control officers. A
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perfect example would be that when a very young kitten got stuck in a sewer for a couple of days
but with the extraordinary help of the County workers we were able to place a cat trap in this
location. As a result, the kitten was saved. Due to the age of this kitten was placed in foster care
until it reached an adoptable age. The very first County worker on the scene eventually became
the new owner of this kitten. Making a difference in this community is our primary goal. With
an entire staff that dedicates their life to helping animals in trouble it makes a difference in me.
Thank you for allowing me to talk.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MR. LUIS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lois Prey.
MS. PREY: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for coming so far. I am on the Board of the
J. Walter Cameron Center. On behalf of the Board of Directors, Staff, and the service provider
agencies currently housed at the J. Walter Cameron Center, I would like to thank the
Administration for including a line item allocation of $90,000 in the County budget to help
support the ongoing operations of the Cameron Center facilities, and respectfully request the
Council's support for this allocation. Over its 38 year history of the Cameron Center has
developed and maintained an effective system for operating a self-sustaining nonprofit
community service facility that provides centrally-located affordable office in program space for
Maui nonprofit health and social services. Until recently, this system has always generated
sufficient income to operate the facility and Cameron Center has been able to consistently
maintain rental rates at levels of 30 and 40 percent below existing market rates. The current
member fees collected from Cameron Center resident agencies, ohana, support 80 percent of the
projected operating expenses for the Fiscal Year 2012. In light of the present market condition,
it is not good business to adjust fees to cover the shortfall and put at risk resident agencies of
offsetting services to our community As a result of this situation, Cameron Center is projecting
a ten percent shortfall in the year 2012 operating budget. This amounts to $180,000. The lineitem allocation of 90,000 to Cameron Center in the 2012 County budget represents 50 percent of
the total shortfall in the Cameron Center Board of Directors has committed to securing the
remaining 90,000 through fundraising events over the next year. The funding from the County
will be used to directly support ongoing maintenance and repair work at the Center. The
Council's approval of this allocation will help ensure that resident fees for the agencies housed at
Cameron Center will be maintained at affordable competitive rates, and that this valuable one-ofa-kind community service facility will continue to provide a home for as many as 20 of Maui's
nonprofit health and social service provider.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. PREY: Mahalo for your consideration.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Dale Netz followed by JoAnne Laird.
MS. NETZ: Good evening. My name is Dale Netz and I'm Director of Customer Service for the Maui
Humane Society. I would like to thank Budget Chair Pontanilla and Council Members for this
opportunity to provide testimony and to also thank you for your past support. Our
compassionate staff is dedicated and has worked very hard to earn your present support and will
continue our mission to facilitate future support as well. This testimony is a respectful request
that the Council keep the amount currently allotted in the proposed budget. We are anticipating
many challenges and accomplishments in the upcoming year. Great efforts have been made to
continue and introduce new programs to enable us to provide the community with the much
needed services that we can provide. In order for us to be dependable, we require dependable,
well-maintained vehicles, tools, supplies, and updated communication equipment, not only to
meet the needs of the community but for safety as well. Our live releases have increased overall
and we're utilizing all tools available to continue the increase. Participation in a national
challenge was productive and we came in 20th in the nation with 113 more lives saved in a threemonth period. Relationships have been established off island to facilitate more live releases and
community outreach is a priority to inform and involve the community for a better understanding
of what we do and what we need to do it. We will continue on with a united mission of
spay/neuter programs and are very proud of the more than 3,000 surgeries completed at the Maui
Humane Society. We have and will continue to focus on education as a tool for improvement in
the lives of our great creatures and the family's responsible for caring for them. Much
appreciated privately-funded renovations have benefitted the animals greatly as well as providing
a much needed morale uplifting work environment. We are now able to provide more specified
care to our animals with more comfort and organization. Every day represents a huge challenge
and a huge sense of accomplishment, not only circumstantially but emotionally. Our economy
has created an environment of need not only for people but for the animals that are being
surrendered after years of being members of a family pack. We are the seven day a week access
and the assumed solution for both. Our working days proudly provide comfort, compassion,
education, and solutions for both humans and all the creatures brought to us for care. There isn't
a day that goes by that doesn't represent a saved life, a new family member, a reunion, a tragedy,
a tear of grief, -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. NEZT: --a child's smile We will maintain strong leadership, goals, and a staff committed and
prepared to serve our animals and the community We thank you for your support and your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. JoAnne Laird followed by Patricia Rouse.
MS. LAIRD: Good evening. My name is JoAnne Laird and I'm the Assistant Training Director for the
Read Aloud America Programs. Last week I provided you with a portfolio called Help Save
RAP, information about our program, and our immediate budget challenges. I stand before you
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to share that 95 percent of our funds have been disappeared on March 31st when we lost a tad of
Federal funding. This means we've been hard pressed to complete the programs we've started
this spring at four Maui schools - Haiku, Waihee, Pomaikai, and Makawao. This means we have
to tell schools on our waiting list there will be no RAP Programs next semester. In Maui County,
that means - Paia, Kihei, Wailuku, and Lanai schools. Read Aloud America RAP Literacy
Program has been recognized as a program that builds social, capital, and strengthens families.
We believe that reading aloud to children has a huge impact on their lives and that parent
involvement in education is absolutely essential. Our message is clear and simple -- read aloud
to children, turn off the TV, limit the use of electronic media, and do things together as a family.
We started RAP in 1999 with what we thought was a huge crowd of 150 children and adults.
This semester we passed the quarter million mark in attendance. Our first sessions of RAP this
past January attracted more than 5,600 adults and children at the 12 schools we serve. At the
four schools on Maui, our average was 575 adults and children at each opening session. Most of
you know that schools have enormous trouble getting parents to go to any school function,
including back to school nights. We have trouble finding cafeterias big enough to hold our
audiences. At Real Aloud America we are not insensitive to the needs of our community We
know that people have to eat and have shelter. We understand that living in grim economic
times and families need financial help. We also believe that they need resources to protect
family values and give them hope and determination, resources to help them help their children
succeed. We also know that money needs to be allocated for prevention. Research shows that
quality after school programs like RAP are effective in strengthening family and deterring teams
from using drugs, being gang members, and becoming teenage parents. I'm sharing with you
this evening a container of what we have called the seeds of literacy. Inside each seed there is a
note to you from one Haiku family who attended our program last week. Their messages are
from the heart. They say to you - help save RAP because . . . In that golden seed on the top is a
message from the school principle on how RAP has changed her school and community How
can you help? Now we realize that Maui County grant deadlines have passed. We just found out
seven weeks ago we lost our money. We would like you to personally contact our State
legislators and Governor -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. LAIRD: --and request continued financial support. You, the members of the Maui County
Council, are in a difficult position. You must balance today's needs against tomorrow's
consequences. We believe that RAP is a positive force for Hawaii's family and we hope you
agree. Thank you for your attention.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Patricia
Rouse followed by Malia Quenga.
MS. ROUSE: Hello, Council. Thank you for letting me speak on behalf of the Aging with Aloha
Coalition. You know that we've been around since about 2002 and we were initially funded by
the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. We were one of several groups in the nation that were
selected to provide health care for seniors, not provide health care but to plan a community
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program, plan a community coalition of volunteers among all of the parts of Maui that would
allow us to come together as a group to plan for what is needed in aging in Maui. And for the
past three years, the Council has funded this coalition. And this year our budget line item is
zero. So we weren't really sure why we got all the way to zero but we do know that we had been
asked to look for alternative sources of funding, and yes, we have already but yet going from
what you had funded us with previously to zero is a real shock. So what we wanted to do was
today, what I wanted to do was to let you know that I do appreciate what's going on, we do
appreciate what's going on with the challenges to the budget. And I was looking at the budget
and realizing that one of the things that says in the economic development section of the budget
is that any activities that you do are consistent with the community's needs and priorities. And
that is interestingly enough one of the main ways the Aging with Aloha Coalition functions we
have regional groups, we take information from people regarding their needs and priorities, and
then we turn those needs and priorities into action. So in that way, what you're looking at for
economic development is similar to what we're doing. Also, I was looking at your goals and
they turn into jobs and more jobs and quality of life. So I wanted to be sure to address the area
of workforce development because of all the things that the Aging with Aloha Coalition does we
have made some strides in training caregivers for seniors and the disabled. We realize that the
workforce of caregivers comes from the youth. We also realized that the baby boomers represent
a huge more number of people than possibly the caregivers are going to be so we've been
addressing this over the years. I just want to review with you what it is that we've done. First of
all, there is a pilot project at Maui College that graduated 119 CNAs and 75 percent of those are
still in the workforce. There's been an eight year project to get high school students interested in
care giving.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. ROUSE: And that, of course, is not a designer job. It's more like an old shoe kind of a job. And
of course a lot of young people are not all that keen on working with older people. So this kind
of a program where we're introducing to people in high schools how to understand what it is that
we do when we care for our seniors and shadow people who are willing to be shadowed in terms
of what they do when they their work for seniors is a really important part of building the
workforce. So we're working on that. And another thing that we're doing, um, I know there's a
program called Compassionate Care that was started at Hale Makua. And this is a program
specifically designed for caregivers who are already working or for family members. What this
program does is that it teaches you how to value your job, and when you value your job then you
do a better job and you stay in your job. So all of those factors are difficult -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. ROUSE: --to continue. Thank you. All of those factors are difficult to hold on to workforce in the
caring . . . in the area of CNAs. So what I'd like to be sure that you know is that we have goals
that are consistent with what's going on in the County and that we do appreciate your
reconsidering of refunding the Aging with Aloha Coalition. Thank you for letting me speak.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
Malia Quenga followed by William Alo, Jr.
MS. QUENGA: Aloha mai ka kou. My name is Malia Quenga. I am the Academic Affairs Specialist
at Hui Malama Learning Center, and I'm here to ask for your support for a line item. We are a
school that services high school, middle school, and GED Prep and I think I wanted to highlight
for you one of the significant parts, well, what I think is a significant part as a single mom
although my sons do not attend this school, is our career development and work preparedness.
We have put several hours into looking towards helping our students and coordinating this
program, having them mentors as some of you might have known and offered and working with
students and families who might not have this opportunities or could have afforded to have done
it on their own. I'm very proud to work for an agency that services our future. As a, again,
single mom I know that there is a lot to look forward to when I'm at my own age and our
children are taking care of us. And I can see this in the students that have fallen through the
cracks, who have not been able to or have chosen not to continue in other schools, and we are an
alternative that is happy to be here to turn their lives around and help them through that. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. William Alo, Jr. followed by Val Ward.
MR. ALO: Aloha, ladies and gentlemen. My name is William Alo and I'm representing the B.E.S.T.
Program with MEO. I'd like to just first start with saying much mahalo for the funding that you
guys have given MEO. MEO plays a big part. I just recently got released from prison five years
ago and decided I wanted to change my life, and I don't know if you noticed but it's very hard
and discouraging. I know that people make mistakes and when you make mistakes we gotta pay
for them. But then there comes a time that we want to change and when you come out of prison
and you want to change and you go for try and get a job or try to be a part of society, everybody
looks at you in a bad way. Applications get turned down, so much discouraging things. It's like
almost like looking across a gulch thinking how you're going to get to the other side. Well,
MEO, is like the bridge. They're there; they give us hope. They give us help. And I truly
believe that with the help of MEO today, my life is not only . . . I don't consider myself not only
as a social member of the society but I honestly know what life is all about today. My life has
never been more stable than what it is today because of the help of MEO. Now, I can be a
daddy, I can be a son, I can be a brother to my family. You know, there's so much more inmates
out there that are coming out that really want to change. They're tired of that type of life but,
you know, with the help of MEO that can be the bridge for them too, you know, to actually
become productive members of society rather than going back to recidivism cause there's no
other help. So much guys I know that need change that want to change but because they get
turned down so much they go back to their old style. And that's why our crime rate is so bad out
there. I believe that with the help like places like MEO B.E.S.T. Program it can help the crime
rate go down because there's so much people out there that really want to change but MEO, you
know, they don't care what you're all about. If you want to change, they're there to help you.
And I'm standing here in front of you letting you know that they have helped me. They
registered my car. They actually helped me fulfill a dream. You know I'm a Class A CDL
-12-
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driver now and I have the most awesome job. My life is so wonderful today and it's all because
of MEO. And I thank you for the help and funding that you have given MEO because you have
given me back a chance at life again. You know, the only way that I can correct myself is by
doing good and MEO played a big stepping stone for me to prove that I can be somebody and I
can be a productive member. And I just want to thank you guys and encourage you that by -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. ALO: --the funding that goes to MEO it will really help a lot of people change, a lot of guys and
wahines change and give them life again. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Bill? Bill?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Alo?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Question from Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Alo?
MR. ALO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I want to thank you very much for coming tonight. I know it takes a lot
of courage but it's real important for the Members to hear what you have to say. Are you aware
that in the budget we're looking at, that there is no money set aside for the B.E.S.T. Program?
MR. ALO: Well, that's really discouraging because it really, really did . . . it helped me so much and I
know so much more guys that really want to change that really could use the help. All I can do
is hope and pray that something happens because there's so much you know more brothers, sons,
fathers that really want to become better.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know a lot of the problem is that the Federal government has taken
away a lot of the grants for this kind of program and that's how it began. Money from the State
that was awarded has never been released and so how the program is continuing is on a small
amount of money that we received from the County, if I'm not mistaken, but there is no money
allocated in here so thank you for coming because it's really important that we be made aware of
that and maybe we'll be able to find some.
MR. ALO: And I thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, tell your buddies who have been in the program we really need to
hear from them.
MR. ALO: Okay.
- 13 -
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MR. ALO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Thanks again.
MR. ALO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Val Ward followed by Judy Robeck.
MS. WARD: Thank you for this opportunity to testify. My name is Val Ward and I live in Kihei. I
would like to speak on behalf of the Aging with Aloha Coalition. It's an amazing organization.
I don't think I've ever met a group of such intelligent, creative, and people who are geniuses in
getting a network going, and really seeing who is able to do things in the community, and then to
produce a booklet that actually helps the rest of us who are trying to work with the elderly to
know what the resources are so that we can help the people that we do work with. I came to
Maui in 1999 for one month to help a 94-year old while his caregiver got his breath back. I
stayed for five years until she died and I learned everything about in-home care giving and just
how stressful that can be, and just how much one needs to put from the community And when
Aging with Aloha came on the scene and began to bring everything together it was like we was
supported at last and we could keep going. It really is an amazing group of people. Two years
ago, my neighbor who lives on his own in his 80s was brought back from the hospital after colon
cancer surgery. Nobody visited him from the hospital for four days. If I hadn't had the directory
of where to get help for him, I really don't know how he would have survived at all. And two
years later, he's still at home. He's doing well and I really couldn't have done that without the
help of Aging with Aloha. It's an amazing group because it helps to fill in the gaps and shows
where things are needed, like some training for in care, in-home caregivers because that's really
needed practically more than anything else. So, I think it's an organization which really, really
does an enormous amount and does it with very little money. I think that the amount of money
which is saved by helping people to stay at home not -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. WARD: --and that's not counting the fact that it actually gives people a quality of life, which all of
us all are going to need. They really are worth for every dollar spent on that organization I think
we save thousands. So I'm here to testify and say that I would love you to support them though I
know what the budget problems are and thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Judy Robeck followed by Syed Sarmad.
MS. ROBECK: I'm one of the beneficiaries of Aging with Aloha, at least I learned . . . I was involved
from the very beginning of their organizing when we met in this building and they warned us
that they'd be a wave of baby boomers and people couldn't believe there would be so many But
-14-
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this was the message that we all needed to change our views because there were going to be
more than anybody ever had expected, and I'm 92 and I have been lucky to have had friends and
been involved in this group and I really admire and respect them and I don't go out nights but
this was too important for me not to make an effort to come. And I don't have much more to say
except that I hope that there is money somewhere and I know what a hard time it is but I'm
simply saying I wish for the best.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Syed followed by Mrs. Mabel Todd.
MR. SARMAD: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak
in front of you. My name is Syed Sarmad and I'm a local businessman. I come here to talk to
you about taxes, property taxes on timeshares. And I come here as a citizen and a resident, and a
voter and a businessman. I'm not with any group or any committees out here. I speak to you
from my heart out here. And I have certain points I'd like to bring up to you first is timeshares . .
. property taxes for timeshares on Maui are the highest in the United States and also the highest
of any island in Hawaii. I wanted to share that with you. You're probably aware that timeshare
owners are taxed twice. They're taxed as property owners and they're also taxed as transient
accommodations tax. They're taxed twice. It's always puzzling to me what a timeshare owner is
in this island? Is he a property owner or is he a hotel guest? It seems to me that he's both here.
I want to talk to you about what the impact of property taxes will do to this island and to us.
Number one, almost every week if you look at the newspaper there's foreclosures for timeshares.
You can look at it every week. Once or twice a week you'll see a list of pages of foreclosures on
timeshares. It's no secret that the economic times we're living in has caused some of these
foreclosures to take place, and also an increase of 40 percent which is what it's been slated for or
proposed for will increase, vastly increase the property taxes for timeshares which will cause
even greater foreclosures. I want to point out just a couple of examples to drive home this point.
There's some timeshares on this island where if this 40 percent increase went on timeshares they
will be paying nearly $100 a day in property taxes, hundred dollars a day in property taxes.
Think about that for a second. Okay. This is what's going to happen. Do they really use that
many services out here? Are they a burden on the school? Are they a burden on the police? Are
they a burden on the fire? What are they? Timeshare owners come to this island . . . they come
here, they spend money on vacation. The loyal people they come back year after year. When
economic times were slow, when 911 affected us, who was on this island supporting restaurants
and shops and place and businesses like that? Timeshare owners were here. They still come
here. When this market slows down because of the tsunami or any other slow down, the
timeshare owners were here every month, every week. They come back year after year; they
spend money in restaurants, in shops, and so forth. So think about this. If property taxes were
increased, what would happen? You would have more foreclosures. What would a timeshare
traveler do? If he's going to pay more for his vacation, he would either give his property back,
let it go into foreclosure, take his money and go vacation someplace else. And what would that
do? It would hurt us because these people will go . . . it would hurt all these different timeshare
developments that are out there, these housekeepers, maids, accountants, bookkeepers,
gardeners, carpenters --15-
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MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. SARMAD: --electricians, all of these people that are affected by that they're the ones that are
going to be affected. People like us, people who live on this island are going to be affected by
this. This timeshare traveler will go someplace else. They would go to Mexico or wherever he
goes out there. We are the ones that will be hurt. This is what we need to think about is who are
you really hurting by this tax increase? Please think about that. It is us that you're going to hurt.
So please keep that in mind. I also want you to know that just acting out of political expediency
like this can have long term serious economic consequences. It is still a puzzle to me that you
have . . . I realize the economic times we're in, we need dollars out there because budgets are
limited, I hear of many cases of people having issues out there, very, very serious issues that
people need money for it. Is it really warranted that timeshare owners who cannot have a voice
out here, they don't have a voice, they live elsewhere. They're there on the mainland. They
don't have a voice here that they be charged an ordinantly high amount of 40 percent -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. SARMAD: --in property taxes when you can see that property taxes did not, their property values
did not go down in 40 percent. So this argument about a net zero or revenue neutral is an
argument that I think really should be taken another look at. In conclusion, I just plead with you
to really consider this. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Sarmad?
MR. SARMAD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you for coming and testifying. I just wanted to ask you a couple
questions. Timeshares - do they actually own the units or they own just a piece of time?
MR. SARMAD: They own it. It's an interest in real estate.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's that unit?
MR. SARMAD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They don't go to different units at each one? So you're aware that
most of the ones in West Maui actually they own a piece of time?
MR. SARMAD: They have a title to it, yes. And it's recorded at the County...
-16-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But it's not a unit?
MR. SARMAD: It's a deed. There's a deed with the unit number.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second, I wanted to know if you are aware that the actual dollars that
the timeshare industry is paying is less than most of any of the other ones because they're paying
less than they did last year by $28,000 as a whole; one of the only categories of taxes that is
actually going down in the actual dollars they paid.
MR. SARMAD: What I do know is that in 2009 property taxes were raised in November of 2009 by a
significantly high amount which was appealed and the Department of Taxation because
timeshare taxes I don't know where the original valuation came from but when the amount was
raised for the year 2010, it was a significantly high amount. That amount was appealed and the
Department of Taxation had to return that money back to the Association. So the question of
valuation is . . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's the question of valuation.
MR. SARMAD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the rate are you aware that the rate is much lower than a study that
started this whole thing off suggested that it be $21.00 a thousand as opposed to the original 14?
MR. SARMAD: No, I didn't know that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was a study that was done to see how much in revenue the
timeshares would bring into Maui compared to a hotel room. The study said it should be $21.00
and it only went to 14.
MR. SARMAD: I did not know that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, what the timeshares are bringing in now are actually going to be
less than they did last year. Are you aware of that?
MR. SARMAD: No, I didn't know that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I would like you to tell your folks that you are representing that
timeshares .. .
MR. SARMAD: I'm not representing anybody. I'm representing myself. I represent, okay, as a person
who lives here and how it will impact our community...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As a person who lives here as well just know that timeshares are less,
are paying less this year than they did last year. Thank you.
-17-
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MR. SARMAD: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino? Mr. Syed, one question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'd like to know how you got your figure of a hundred dollars a
day for taxes.
MR. SARMAD: How did I get it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. How did you figure that?
MR. SARMAD: I will tell you. There is a property in Kahana where property taxes for that timeshare
is already $440.00 right now per week of timeshare. If you add a 40 percent increase, that's
another $160.00. It's about $90.00 a day in taxes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that figure you gave me which was something like $500 a
week is only for taxes?
MR. SARMAD: Yes. Yes, right now, there's a timeshare in Kahana, it's called the Sands of Kahana
and right now people pay about . . . there's $440 in property taxes is what's being paid right now
today.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Per week.
MR. SARMAD: Per week, yes. And if you add a 40 percent increase that's about $160.00 more that
brings it to $600 for the week.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll look in to that. I'm going to tell you right now, I don't believe
that because if we're getting that kind of money, I could fund everything in this room 10 times
over.
MR. SARMAD: I can tell you . . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, sir. I appreciate it.
MR. SARMAD: Just look into it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I'll look into it but I don't think you're right. Thank you.
MR. SARMAD: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mrs. Todd, go ahead.
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MRS. TODD: Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla, and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. My name is Mabel Todd and I'm standing here before you because I firmly believe
that Maui definitely needs a free standing Hospice. In 1999, my husband Ed Todd was told by
his doctor that he was going to be placed under Hospice care. It's always a shock to hear those
words. But the next day we met our Hospice nurse who actually is here tonight, Anne Rowell
[sic], and learned about Hospice and what a wonderful blessing they are as they walk with you
through that hard time. You're usually put under Hospice when you're given six months or less
to live. And my husband, Ed, actually lived for two years and 15 days under Hospice. It must
have been the good care. But anyway, it was a special time. It really was. And I have so many
joyous memories of that time and of the wonderful care that Hospice gave us. So we were so
grateful for that. The question is what would have happened to my Ed if I wasn't able to give
him that care? Who would have done that for him? And so that's why I'm asking you tonight to
consider because that's a dilemma that many people here on Maui face. We're requesting
actually $500,000 to build a free standing Hospice for Maui to meet this urgent need. Mahalo
nui loa for listening. Thank you all.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO (Substituting Chair): Thank you. Members, questions? Hearing none,
thank you very much. Anne Rowen [sic]? Can you step on the side, please? Yeah. I'm sorry,
thank you very much. Go ahead.
MS. ROWEHL: Good evening. My name is Anne Rowehl. I'm a registered nurse. I've worked for
Hospice Maui since 1997. And, indeed, Ed was one of my most favorite patients and cared for
him certainly the longest. I'm here to ask you tonight to give us also monies to help us begin to
build a free standing 12-bed unit for Hospice Maui. We need this facility so badly. The one
universal experience that everyone in this room shares is we all are going to die. And yet, it's
something that we never talk about. Our culture especially wants to run away from it. And yet, I
would dare humbly make this proposal. There's no one in this room who would rather die in a
hospital bed left there for weeks or months than to be able to die either in their home or in a
home-like environment. Most people who can care for their loved ones at home, as Mabel did,
choose to do that. But there are situations where there are no caregivers. Are the caregivers of
themselves too frail or become too frail or just need a break of a week or so. We have very little
options in that situation. We have the land, we have the plans. Those of us who work for
Hospice can hardly wait until we can have this wonderful facility for Maui. So, I would humbly
ask you that you give us this money to build this facility. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Mr. White? Anne?
Anne? Can you come back to the mike again?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Can you hear me?
MS. ROWEHL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you for coming this evening. You may not know the answer to
this but maybe somebody that's here with Hospice might have it. My understanding is that
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Hospice has not ever come to the County for operating funds. Just come for land and this is . . . I
believe the first time they've come for actual .. .
MS. ROWEHL: Yes, I believe that's so. I believe that's so. We have our land on a long term rental
very inexpensive dollar a year or something like that rental fee. And I believe you're right, this
is the first time we've really ever been in a situation where we may be truly able to bring this
about and build this facility which would greatly enrich our community There are (inaudible)
sake in the hospital now for people who don't need them, they have no place else to go.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, thank you for coming. It's a wonderful, wonderful service for
those of us who have been able to take advantage of it. It's a real Godsend. Thank you.
MS. ROWEHL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Rob Riebling followed by John Finnegan.
MR. RIEBLING: Good evening, Members. I'm Rob Riebling, Vice President of the Ma'alaea
Community Association. You know us, we're the folks from northern South Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you speak directly into the mike, please?
MR. RIEBLING: Oh, okay. Better? I'd like us to shift gears for a moment and think capital
improvements. Our residential community has only one street, that's Hauoli Street, and it dead
ends in the cane field and it's bi-sected by a natural water course which flows under it through a
culvert to the ocean. Changes to upstream drainage conditions over the years have led to
increased flows of debris bearing storm water during torrential rains, which the existing culvert
was no longer able to handle. So during the several storms this past winter, debris plugged the
culvert flooding the road an adjacent properties and even took care of the County park at the end
of the street. What we'd like you to understand is that when this happens in Maalaea it's a whole
lot worse than when it happens here in Kihei because in Kihei people at least have a way out. In
Maalaea when the road floods half of the people on the east end of the street have no way out.
They can't get to or from work or school. They can't get food or medical supplies, and fire,
police and medical vehicles cannot get through to help them. Now before the recent floods,
Public Works had actually prepared preliminary design drawings for a new culvert which much
larger flow area and upstream settling basin to mitigate the problem. In fact, we were working
with them providing community input when the December floods came. Public Works
responded quickly after the floods with temporary emergency repairs to get the road open again
which we sincerely thank them. But this quick fix did not mitigate the long term problem
because it was only a stop gap measure which does not even comply with Title 15, Chapter 4, of
the Maui County Code. Public Works fully engineered drainage plans must be implemented
quickly for reasons of public health and safety. My colleagues who will be following me will
tell you of the financial and health and safety consequences of those floods some of which were
quite severe. I'm here to urge you to take the funding currently shown in 2013 in the Kihei- 20 -
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Makena capital improvements budget and please move it directly into FY 2012 so work can get
started on this urgently needed improvements now. If it turns out that land needs to be acquired
for the settling basin, then let's acquire it. A&B can be asked to donate a quarter of an acre
that's involved or lease it to the County for a dollar a year as they did to our community
association when they provided land for our community garden at a dollar a year. So, I urge you

MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. RIEBLING: --please fund Hauoli Street drainage improvements now. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. John Finnegan followed by Bill Hawkins.
MR. FINNEGAN: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen of the County Council. My name is John
Finnegan; I'm a 25-year resident of Maalaea Banyans. I'm also a member of the Maui
Community Association and we wish to thank Mayor Arakawa and the Department of Public
Works for the timely repair of the Hauoli Street bridge and culvert. Unfortunately, the work is
not completed. The culvert and the bridge are a temporary measure inadequate to deal with a
considerable rain storm. The storm drainage ditch along the Honoapiilani Highway has altered
the landscape. The runoff from the stone quarry and the proposed Ohana Kai housing
development is not absorbed in the cane field and flows to the Hauoli Street culvert. The culvert
cannot handle the debris, the depth, and the velocity of the runoff. It is overwhelmed and we
have a flood and mud problem. In February, the damaged bridge was unusable for a few days.
We were cut off from food shopping, doctors, hospital, emergency, police, fire, and ambulance
services. It was an uneasy feeling to be in such a vulnerable position. There were five minor
mud related slip and fall injuries and one slip and fall was serious enough to require a five-day
hospitalization. The Hauoli Street drainage ditch is in serious disrepair. After 250 feet that
abruptly ends with a sharp, jagged edge and a dangerous three foot drop off. This creates a
waterfall of mud, debris, and recently a lawn mower. The rushing water carries off the soil
eroding the property of the Maalaea Banyans and the Island Sands condominiums. To correct
this loss of property, we ask that the drainage ditch be extended another 65 feet. The recent rains
have left the Maalaea Bay with an approximate one quarter mile deep brown stain of mud and
debris that pollutes the bay and pollutes the coral. It will take months, if ever, to dissipate. It is
not how we want to picture Maui. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions of the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MR. FINNEGAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Bill Hawkins?
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MR. HAWKINS: I'm Bill Hawkins from Maalaea and I rise in support of the Hauoli Street drainage
culvert as proposed by the Department of Public Works. And as you have just heard, the Hauoli
Street culvert area has suffered some devastating damage through the storms that we've had in
the last few months. During the January 13th storm, the culvert failed and the residents south of
the culvert were stranded. They couldn't get out and first responders couldn't get in. As a
retired first responder myself I observed people circumnavigating the culvert and going down
into the ocean you had the storm surge on one side from the ocean and then you had the rushing
waters from the culvert on the other side led to a very dangerous situation. People took some
desperate measures in order to seek whatever they had to seek. A situation where there is no
way in and there is no way out certainly demands or must take some precedence of medical
emergency on the wrong side of the culvert would surely end in a disaster, if not lost of life.
During the storm, the mud over flowed the culvert and it flowed into the ocean. This mud
contained nutrient, rich soils like fertilizer, manure, irrigation tubing, dead animals and even a
tractor. What didn't make it into the ocean, made it into our homes. We're still cleaning up.
Damage to Island Sands alone cost over a quarter of a million dollars. Damage to Maalaea Bay
is still being determined The ocean floor littered with debris. Toxic mud has furthered damage
marine life in that area. Health and safety issues alone would command a full budgetary
response. The County's temporary single box culvert repair has helped by giving us access to
the rest of the island and we are appreciated. However, this emergency repair is insufficient for
the type of storms we witnessed on December 23 and January 13th. During a lesser storm after
January 13th after about an hour of heavy rain and you have this picture, this temporary culvert
that we have now was full. It was just few inches from the top. And any storm of longer
duration would bring this same bacteria filled mud into the ocean, on to our roads, into our
parking lots and into our homes. The Public Works Department has a general site plan calling
for a double box culvert giving us twice the current capacity, they would repair the . . . and
enhance the still deteriorating -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HAWKINS: --drainage area along with the detention basis to control the hazardous debris. The
repair plan has been on and off the budget in the past. And if we had left it on the budget, we
wouldn't have had to spend the money for the temporary culvert. As a former elected
government official I, too, realize the budget is always tight. The results of waiting too long,
however, are painfully evident. Therefore, I ask you to fund the complete Public Works drainage
improvements on Hauoli Street for Fiscal Year 2012. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. HAWKINS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hermine Harman followed by Kuuleilani Weathington.
MS. HARMAN: Aloha, Councilmen and Councilwomen, and ladies and gentlemen. My name is
Hermine Harman. I'm here to testify on two issues in the budget. The first is the deletion of
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Aging with Aloha. I speak as a retired medical social worker among the first wave of baby
boomers in the Tsunami of Aging and the former chair of the Home and Community Based
Committee of the Maui County Health Initiative Task Force. That's a lot of words to get out in
one sentence. But we had come up with the top priorities in that Task Force that was set up by
the Legislature and among them there were several things that the Coalition has addressed, like
the Home and community based service capacity, the health care workforce, and the prevention
programs. We are approaching a national disaster of caring for my generation, but locally we are
so unprepared with services, agencies and the workforce to deal with this explosion. As Hale
Makua's census decreases and is currently about 40 empty beds, which is shocking given that
they always run at capacity, more assistance, training and caregiver support is required even
before my generation requires these services for aging in place. Aging with Aloha facilitates
pilot projects that are then incorporated into the service delivery system. The proposed budget's
deletion of the only coalition of most of our island's agencies dealing with aging, made up of
individual services, is a giant oversight. It is quite an auspicious body of professionals and
volunteers as one of the previous testifiers mentioned and it's quite an honor to be involved with
them. The Coalition facilitated training a workforce from high school kids to caregivers, and
also created the Hana Home Retrofit Program and facilitates "Aging in Place" and other cost
saving programs. I'm sure you would all agree that care for our kupuna is a worthy, necessary
goal, but someone has to build the infrastructure to help Maui's growing aging population with
their increasing needs. Are special events, sports, and Halloween really more important than
creating our care for our kupuna and this booming generation of boomers? I don't think so.
Now, on the other subject that is very near and dear to my heart is the Hospice grant proposed in
the budget for $500,000 towards their $10 million goal towards an in-patient facility. I
mentioned I'm a retired medical social worker and I did my thesis on the impact on the health
care delivery system on families coping with death due to cancer, and ran one of the first hospice
home care programs in Los Angeles, and helped to establish a national hospice organization and
set up five other programs. On Maui, as I mentioned, I served on that Task Force and Hospice
was one of my priorities. Personally, I went through a dear friends dying process here and she
was lucky to benefit from Hospice Maui services and her husband took time off work and was
her full-time caregiver and she had a group of us as her supporters and Hospice Maui. But -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. HARMAN: --what if her husband wasn't able to support her and what if she didn't have a beautiful
home to live in and be cared for? I really believe an in-patient unit is required. I urge you to add
that $500,000 back into the budget and I appreciate your aloha for this. Thank you. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Kuuleilani Weathington followed by Ned Davis.
MS. WEATHINGTON: Aloha, Chair Pontanilla and Council Members. First of all, I'd like to thank
you for coming out and giving us your time. Time is very precious. My name is Kuuleilani
Weathington and my child is a member of Kihei Youth Center. We would like to thank the
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County of Maui for providing the needed funding to support KYC. We just relocated from Maui
. . . from Oahu to Maui, November of 2010. When we settled in Kihei the only children's
program I was aware of were provided by Parks and Recreation, AYSO, and Little League.
Because my child is a special needs child it is most difficult to find a program that will be able to
understand how to work with him while trying to teach him how to socialize appropriately with
other children his age. Most of the programs at the time were already in the middle of an active
season and too late for my child to participate; to include him we had to wait maybe 4-6 more
months until another season would start. Kihei Youth Center was available right away and able
to take my child within one week. Before starting his program, the Director and the Coordinator
met with my family to talk about my child's needs, his likes and his dislikes with activities that
would help him adjust to a new setting, all of this caring effort to make my child meet his goals
to make friends. After suffering a four-year recovery, sorry, due to a pedestrian accident, I
cannot drive and youth service in partnership with MEO Transportation allows my son to utilize
that to get to and from KYC. The funding for Kihei Youth Center is detrimental to children who
are not able to find an organized variety of programs that fit every child's needs, like computers,
sports, economics, academics, technology, socializing. Kihei Youth Center has the staff and
programs that fit my child's needs at this time. As he gets older, Kihei Youth will always stay
with him so in hopes that he can come back and give another child the same attention. Mahalo
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Members, the next testifier is Ned Davis. As soon as Mr. Davis concludes his testimony, the
Chair will call for a short recess. Mr. Davis?
MR. DAVIS: Hi. I'm Ned Davis from Trex Enterprises, a small high-tech company that actually
employs 16 people here on Maui and over 40 in the State of Hawaii. I'm here tonight to testify
on behalf of MEDB - Maui Economic Development Board. First and foremost, I would like to
thank you for your support for MEDB over the years. It's very much appreciated by the business
people in the community such as myself. I'd also like to beseech you to please continue to
support MEDB even in these trying financial times. The way I look at it is the support for
MEDB is really an investment in the County's financial future. It's doubly important when
finances and the economic climate is tough like it is now. I can speak to the benefits of MEDB
directly. Of the two and a half million or so that Trek has brought to the island in the past year,
about a third of it is directly related to help MEDB gave us in terms of finding seed money for
some fibro-optic work that led to one project then to another project and then following on from
there. Specifically, they help with introductions, letters of support, making sure I knew the right
people to talk to and helping to bring that together. As I said, it's really an investment even more
than a support type of thing. Thank you very much for that support for what's done for us, for
what's done for the other companies here on island, and I certainly hope that you're able to
continue this in the future.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Davis? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Ladies and gentlemen, the Committee will take a short break and we'll reconvene at
7:35. This meeting is in recess . . . (gavel). . .
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RECESS:

7:26 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:40 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Okay, Members, the next testifier is Christa Briggs. She left? Okay. Dominique
Ashanti-Dubois?
MS. ASHANTI-DUBOIS: Good evening, my name is Dominique Ashanti-Dubois. I am here
representing MEO and all of what they represent to this community The first word in MEO is
Maui, and that is a very important word in this room. The economic development that they help
us with, the rates of increase in our expenses due to MEO we're able to survive. I can only give
you my personal story. As a small business owner, as a single mother, MEO has contributed
considerably to my existence to keeping me afloat, to helping me to raise my son. From the
business perspective, I started a small community project - enrichment for children. I have a
children's choir is the only one open to the community in Maui. We're called the Kaleidoscope
Kids Hawaii - Rainbow Children's Choir of Maui. Without their assistance, I would not have
been able to do this. Our children deserve a lot. We have very little. What I was able to provide
to them, some of my students are ADHD, some of my students need their outlet, need their
singing, their acting, their movement. These things increase their educational opportunities, their
concentration, their memorization, their self-esteem. Without MEO I would not have been able
to give them that. MEO helped me with my rental assistance for my home while I started this
project. At the end of October, I had five students. With the grace of MEO, I now have 30
students in my program. That is an extreme increase in just a few months. Grace of MEO . . . I
can't keep saying that because as a single mother there is no way I could have opened my doors
to the kids, found a place for us to rent. We have just been invited to also have classes at the
Maui music studios at the Queen Kaahumanu Mall because they heard us on Sunday. We had a
performance on Saturday . . . I'm getting my days mixed up because we're going back to the
Queen Kaahumanu Mall on another Sunday, May 29th, and at Lahaina Cannery Mall. This is so
great for our kids. We have children from Haiku all the way down to Kihei, Wailuku, Kahului;
from all over they come because there is nothing else like what I am presenting for the kids. It is
a blessing for me.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. ASHANTI-DUBOIS: Thank you. It is a blessing for me to be able to give what I have been given,
what I was given as a child, to give to these children to express themselves. But without the
rental assistance, I couldn't have done it. I would not be here as a small business owner. I
would be here as just a single mother. That is a huge difference in my life. And from that, I am
touching all those other families -- the children with special needs, from the children that are
talented but have nowhere to go, from the parents that want their children to concentrate more,
memorize more, present better, focus in school. I do provide a service but I'm not just here as a
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single mother. I'm here as a small business owner, and for that, I thank MEO. And I really
appreciate you, all of you from Mike, El, Gladys, Donald, Joseph -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. ASHANTI-DUBOIS: --Danny, we have Michael, we have Robert, all of you contribute to our
community and we thank you so much. And personally, I want to thank you for giving MEO
and people like me a chance. God Bless You.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Christa
Briggs?
MS. BRIGGS: Hi, good evening. My name is Christa Briggs. I'm a resident of Kihei and a parent with
a child in MEO Head Start. I just wanted to come and tell my appreciation of this program. A
lot of families wouldn't be able to start school so early without this program so I really
appreciate that it's still going. And the fact that they do the part-time session till noon, they also
do the full-time session till two, and the summer session until three. So, it's really awesome that
they're extending their hours and so many families get a lot of benefit from it. And I have a
second issue. The last County Council meeting, I stated that there needs to be a crosswalk at the
intersection of Auhana and Kanani. And that was 6 or 8 months ago. I haven't seen any
progress with this intersection so I just wanted to let you know that the intersection of Auhana
and Kanani is a triangle and a lot of cars come down the express way and they're coming down
Kanani very fast. A lot of police officers have actually been at this intersection, you know,
patrolling and giving out tickets but a crosswalk would really be helpful at that triangle at
Auhana and Kanani, it really needs to be in place. It's very dangerous that it is not there so . . .
thank you so much, County Council. I appreciate your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Excuse me. Mr. Couch has a question for you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you for coming to testify.
MS. BRIGGS: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You are talking about at the top of the triangle because at the bottom . .

MS. BRIGGS: Right, at the top of the triangle.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the other side of Waimaka then?
MS. BRIGGS: Waimaka?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Waimaka is the little cul-de-sac.
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MS. BRIGGS: Yeah, the little side street of Kanani.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're talking about . . .
MS. BRIGGS: Yeah, at the top.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mauka side?
MS. BRIGGS: Where Kanani and . . . well, actually, Waimaka, that little street also needs . . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But the mauka side yeah?
MS. BRIGGS: Yeah, the mauka side.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Lehuanani Huddleston-Hafoka followed by
Jerrie Sheppard.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Aloha, Council members. My name is Lehuanani HuddlestonHafoka and I'm the Executive Director of the Kihei Youth Center. First of all, I would like to
thank the kids for being so patient and coming here with me. I just wanted to give them an
experience of what it's like to attend a community meeting. So I'm the only one that's going to
talk. A lot of them wanted to talk but we wanted to be mindful of your time as well as the time
of the people attending so again I'd like to thank the kids. So I stand here and I speak on behalf
of the youth center members, the parents, the guardians, our Board of Directors, and I would like
to start off by sharing how much we appreciate what the County of Maui has done for us. We're
extremely thankful that we are granted $160,000 for this current fiscal year. If it wasn't for the
County of Maui, we would not be open today. I believe and I understand that we play a very
vital role in our community We are the only youth center in Kihei, and we've been around for
28 plus years. We are incorporated in 1983, and we are still located at the original Kihei Youth
Center which is what we call the old Kihei School. It's the Kenolio Recreation Complex. So I
think 28 years speaks for itself. Again, if it wasn't for the County of Maui, we would not be here
today. And I have some parents who have come on their own. We've asked some of our parents
also to come but I know that I can attest to the fact that Kihei Youth Center plays such a vital
role to the parents and grandparents who are raising children nowadays in addition to other
family members and non-family members who are raising the children today, that day they drop
off their children because they believe in our services. And I think it's really important that we
continue to service our community for we firmly believe that if you have services for kids you're
going to have that much more of a healthy community And I know that everybody can attest to
the fact that between the hours of 2 p.m. and 7 p.m. statistically that's the highest or the most at
risk time for our youth and we play a very vital role by being open, Monday through Fridays.
Majority of the vacations, including summer, fall, winter, and spring sessions. We are open from
8 a.m. to 6 p.m., we include a free lunch, all this for $10.00 a year. And people are amazed that
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we are able to charge such a minimal fee and we don't want people to get mixed up with the idea
that we have a minimal fee, therefore, our program is a minimal program because we do so much
more with the monies that you entrust us with. We not only service the youth standards that the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns Grants Committee recommends to us. There are
seven components but we also provide clothing, we provide food through a partnership with
MEO . . .
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Thank you. We recently partnered with Waste Not, Want Not. We
have many community partners, so we believe that we have to do our part in meeting the
financial needs and not become so reliant on the County of Maui. So I want you to understand
and firmly believe that we are doing our best and that our community needs are being met and
I'd like to ask that you continue to support us. Again, I know that every youth center, every
Boys and Girls Club is worthy of your money so I'd like to thank you on behalf of all the youth
centers and the Boys and Girls Club. Together we all do and can and will continue to make a
difference in our community Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jerrie Sheppard followed by Constante Sumibcay.
MS. SHEPPARD: Good evening. Thank you for coming to Kihei. Some of you I know; some of you I
don't know but you'll get to know me believe me. I'm never absent for very long from
anybody's conscience. I'd like to encourage you to continue to support all the youth recreation
activities in the County of Maui but here in Kihei it's especially an interest to me. I've seen the
Kalama Park when the skateboard park was closed and all I saw was dereliction, delinquency,
crime, nuisances, and bad behavior down there. With that skateboard park open, I have seen
activity, I've seen healthy engagement by kids, I've seen parents getting involved in that area
when they weren't involved before and I think it's really, really important that we don't throw
out the baby with the bath water as we start to develop new parks here in Kihei and around Maui
that we don't neglect to take care of the parks that we already have. The one thing I think is
really important here is our youth. And just like the Director of the Kihei Youth Center just told
you -- as long as we have kids engaged in good activities they're not engaged in bad activities.
As long as we have good activities for them to engage in even if their parent can't be there with
them they have role models that they can look up to. They have people they can emulate. They
can aspire to something more than what they would have if we didn't provide that opportunity
for them. So I'm just encouraging you to please, please keep in mind the parks and recreation
for our youth as you work on this very difficult budget. Once you finish pulling the rabbit out of
the hat because I know you're not supposed to raise any taxes and you're not suppose to cut any
programs, and you're suppose to restore funding to programs that used to have money but don't
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have money so when you finish with that little project, could you work on world peace? Thank
you very much.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(laughter) . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jerrie. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thanks again. Constante Sumibcay. No? Oscar Del Campo followed by Phyllis Hernandez.
MR. DEL CAMPO: Hello. Good evening. My name is Oscar Martin Del Campo. I'm here to speak
on behalf of MEO. MEO I know of no other nonprofit community organization out there that
has so many different programs for our community here on Maui. I can stand here and mention
too many programs that they have that have made a great impact in our community One of the
programs that I can share with you that I know of is the Hispanic link Now they provide
services to the Hispanics in our community by educating them, integrating them into our society,
and providing to them the skills and tools that they need to help in our community Another
program that I know of is their youth services. They provide a lot of services to our youths out
in the community at the Kihei Youth Center, which has made a great difference here in our Kihei
district area. The early education program which has to do with the early development of youths
that's also another program that needs to be looked at which is very positive in our community
And another program that I know of is the farming program, their assistance that they provide to
the farmers up there. Overall, I know that times are hard right now and there's no money but I
think that MEO they play a great deal in our society here. And if we don't provide the funding,
if we don't provide the assistance . . . we don't support them, then it's going to affect the entire
community on our island. So I ask you for your support and even if it's a little bit of money,
whatever it is, I know they can do something with it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Oscar, for being here this evening. Members,
and audience, I'd like to take the opportunity to introduce you to Police Officer Oscar
Del Campo who yesterday was named the winner of the 2011 Cesar Chavez Award for his work
in the Hispanic community Thank you.
MR. DEL CAMPO: Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier. Congratulations, by the way.
MR. DEL CAMPO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Phyllis Hernandez followed by Leigh Duewy.
MS. HERNANDEZ: Good evening. My name is Phyllis Hernandez and it's a real honor to be here
with you this evening. I watch you on TV but I've never been in a face-to-face confrontation. It
is with this that I will say that my first job when I came here in 1993 was housekeeping. I went
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to MEO to help look for work and at that time Cesar Gaxiola was in charge of Enlace Hispano,
Hispanic link with Gladys Baisa, supervising all of us . . . naughty little kids. So I tried to find a
job; I had been a personal secretary from where I came from but I could not find a job. So the
logical thing for a latina was to do housekeeping. So I went to work for a very wealthy family in
Haiku and I used to pretend it was my house. I used to clean it diligently and pretend that it was
my home. I would iron, I would take care of it just the best that I could. Then one day I heard
there was an opening at Hispanic link Enlace Hispano, and someone had given me a book that
said, do what you love and the money will come. Well, I've been taught how to clean house
really well from my mother who was born and raised in Mexico. Well, I love to clean but I was
tired of cleaning and I love to talk, and I love to speak Spanish. So, luckily, I was hired by
Hispanic link and worked under Cesar Gaxiola. During this time, I became acquainted with so
many different Latinos, you know, from Honduras, from Guatemala, from Mexico. I was born
and raised in Nebraska and there was hardly no Latinos. So I was enthralled with all the
Hispanics, and we helped them. I was a case manager then and we helped them look for jobs, we
helped them with citizenships, we gave them classes in English, we just helped them walk
through . . . you know, they didn't know what they were even doing here sometimes but I was a
case manager and I was taught so well. I was taught so well that after a while I was able to open
up my own business. But had it not been for Enlace Hispano and the different people that taught
me not just what I learned as a case manager but we always had an open door with Gladys. If
there was anything that we needed to talk about, she always had that open door policy.
Personnel was the same way. Whatever we needed help with that was the beautiful thing about
MEO and I saw the different departments. They helped the young people, they helped people
that were just out of prison, you know, that helped them re-evaluate their lives, redirect their
lives, and I had a passion for that. And so, I was given the opportunity through everything that I
learned there at Enlace Hispano to open up my business, and now I've been doing -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. HERNANDEZ: --that for about ten years and I do the same thing. I help translate but everything
that I gleaned from them I'm passing on to others. And I really believe that had it not been for
my experience at Enlace Hispano Hispanic link, I wouldn't be where I am today, and I know,
and I ask you, I beg you to consider financing this program. It is so valuable to so many just as it
was for me. Thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Leigh Duewy followed by Jessica . . . followed by Jessica.
MS. DUEWY: Good evening, Council. My name is Leigh Duewy and I'm representing the Maui
Humane Society this evening. My affiliation with the Humane Society started kind of quite by
accident about three years ago as a volunteer. Since then I have been . . . become a member of
the Board and I currently serve as the Board's secretary. You know, we appreciate everything
that you've done for us. In terms of programs, I think everyone knows about adoption and
spay/neuter and everything else. Here's the deal. We really have to pass the issues here on
Maui. We really need the funding to keep the programs going, the community outreach, the
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education. We're very proud that our board mission statement is completely in line with the
objectives at the shelter every day, day in and day out, like Dale said. I mean, we have the worse
days, we have the best days, and you never know. Some days the best day and a worse day, you
just don't ever know. But we appreciate your support. We look forward to aligning and
continuing in the future, and thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Jessica Gambsky.
MS. GAMBSKY: Good evening. My name is Jessica Gambsky. I am a veterinarian technician at the
Maui Humane Society. Tonight, I am here for another wonderful organization, one that helps
my daughter, Kameron. I never knew about the Kihei Youth Center. Never knew about their
programs they offered our children, never knew that in conjunction with MEO they pick up
students from school. I never knew this until I needed them. That was two years ago. I'll never
forget her first summer when she learned to ride a bike. At the time where I lived, I was right
next to a highway and riding a bike was just not safe. From my car, I watched her. She didn't
know but another young girl was cheering her on. It seemed that day she needed a friend. I'm a
firm believer of education, a high school cum laude graduate I have attended U. H. Manoa for
three years. I teach children about my job. I am currently writing a book for my daughter. The
youth center meets my high expectations. They provide our children with educational programs,
they teach them respect, responsibility, even cultural activities. Thank you, County Council
members, for being able to allow them to continue to give to our community and to give back to
humanity. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Coralie Willett.
MS. WILLETT: Well, I think I'm last but not least for the Maui Humane Society. My name is Coralie
Willett and I'm on the Board of Directors at the Maui Humane Society. The facility at the Maui
Humane Society for the last number of years has been in desperate need of repairs and
upgrading. This past year, we received significant contributions from one individual to be used
for improving the shelter facilities. The donor asked for matching funds and we were able to
match his generous offer. The funds were used to improve the administration building which
now has two separate entries for incoming and outgoing animals. We refer to them as the happy
side and the sad side. Prior to this, someone wishing to adopt a pet was sharing the same lobby
with someone who had just recently lost a pet or had to bring them in to be euthanized. These
offices in the administration building also had been updated with new computer terminals and a
better flow of traffic. We were also able to almost double the space in our veterinary clinic can
provide a second operating room thereby increasing our ability to do more spay/neuters. And I
think Jessica who was our Vet Tech can attest to that about how pleasant they've been so happy
with the new facility especially in the veterinary area. The spay/neuter program, as you know, as
one of our main objectives is to increase the number of spay/neuter, and with the second
operating room I think that's going to be a real possibility this upcoming year. Additionally, we
built new after-hours receiving kennels for those animals brought in after our shelter had closed.
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Prior to this, often the staff would come in the following morning and just find dogs tied to trees
because the shelter was closed and they had no place to put them. We now have six new
completely new after-hours receiving kennels. All in all, we're very pleased with the
improvements these private donations were able to provide us. That same benefactor that gave
this significant contribution this past year has continued his support and we are now planning to
increase our kennel capacity by approximately ten more additional kennels. The drawings have
been completed by my husband, I might add, who has been doing all this work pro bono and will
be submitted to the County tomorrow. By the way, we're hoping that they'll get a timely
approval as we are in desperate need of additional kennels. We have had great support from the
community for these projects but these donations still do not cover the shortfall and the dollars
necessary to fulfill our obligations under our current County contract. The County funds
represent approximately 50 percent of our current revenue but we estimate it would cost us
approximately 65 percent of our total revenue to fulfill the County obligations. So we are adding
approximately 15 percent from private funds to make up this shortfall. We all know the current
economic environment is difficult for everyone and our animals are no exception. What makes it
even more difficult for us is that we are seeing an increase in our animal intakes based on people
that can no longer care for their animals due to these economic conditions, so our intakes are up
but our revenue from the County is down. Thus, we are having to make up with private
donations.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. WILLETT: We want to continue to serve the community as we have in the past. Maui Humane
Society has been in a strong financial position which has allowed us to weather this economic
down turn better than many other agencies. We hope that will continue and we hope that your
continued support will also continue. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Jim Worley? Jim?
MR. WORLEY• Good evening. Thank you for this opportunity. My name is Jim Worley. I'm a Kihei
resident of 32 years, small businessman here. I serve on two of the boards that the County is
very supportive of, and I appreciate their efforts. Ka Hale A Ke Ola, formerly known as Maui
Economic Opportunities for the Community Secondly, I serve on the Board of Maui Economic
Development Board. I've been on both of these boards for many years and I have seen
tremendous amount of good that has come out of it, and the pay back has been phenomenal to
the County. Back when the Economic Development Board first started, Don Malcolm, Colin
Cameron, and a number of other people, and the Mayor at that time were very concerned about
diversification. At that time, the largest company on the island had employees in the thousands.
Yesterday, I read that employment of that company was right at 200. That's why we need
economic diversity. As a small businessman, it's the only way that businesses and communities
can grow. And we have seen an immense amount of it and that's the kind of thought I wanted to
bring out about what has happened as a result of Maui Economic Development Board over the
years. Behind us is a major development. Wouldn't be here if it wasn't for the efforts and the
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tireless efforts of the staff and the people who support it, and that's you folks too. We have one
of the largest computers, super computers in the world. We have scientific work going on. We
have disaster prevention work going on. We have built buildings there that would not even have
been thought to ever be built on this island 15 years ago, 20 years ago. All of this has come
about because of the turnover of the money that you folks have given us to do what we do. We
bring in one of the largest, most highly scientific conferences in the world - AMOS that comes
here. It is probably one of the highest producing revenues for the community based on that and
they have grown every year to the point where now you are a star if you've ever made a
presentation at that scientific conference. This effort must continue for the benefit of you folks,
your children, your grandchildren, and my grandchildren. I recall a local man named Texeira...
Tavares who was married to a Texeira, he said one day, Howard did, you know, Jim, when I
grew up there wasn't anything here -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. WORLEY --for our kids to do. Today, we have many jobs where they can come in. The girls and
women can get their education and come back home and add to the community I'm proud of
that. We need this. The same goes for the shelter. The shelter has literally 20 college graduates
at various levels that are helping as many as 1,500 to 2,000 people that sleep under roofs that you
and we have helped build there. We don't know where they'd be sleeping tonight. That effort
has paid off big time. Ask the Chief of Police. Crime is down because of it. We provide a basic
infrastructure for children. We have a Head Start program that MEO supports. It is one of the
finest and maybe one of the best in the nation if you look at what it does and what it supports.
Don't let that go down. Those programs for -.

MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. WORLEY: --both of these opportunities, economic opportunities are very, very, well needed in
this community Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Christine Marya?
MS. MARYA: Aloha. Good evening, everybody. Thank you for coming and it's always an honor and
I just want to say, thank you, for all the work you do, dedicating your lives to making everything
better in life, the better quality of life that we're all trying to improve. I'm here for the fourlegged creatures tonight who can't be here and don't have a voice, and I know that there's a
program going on for the dog parks all over Maui and I just want to come and say I support this
and I hope that you support this. Our animals keep us happy. They always bring a greater
quality of life and we need to be able to take better care of them as well as them keeping us
happy, and keeping that cycle of energy going. So, likewise, Gladys just left the room but I'm
also a recipient of great benefit from MEO and Kihei Youth Center, I'm just so happy to see
everybody here tonight to cheer each other on and make life happier here. And I hope that one
day I'll be able to contribute back one of those projects that I have in mind is kind of a spin-off
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of the Maui Humane Society. I hope you continue to support them and maybe I'll be standing
here one day for funds, asking for funds for another year but I hope too that I can sometime bring
funds to you guys cause I know how hard you work, and try to make everything balanced and I
think you do an amazing job considering all the challenges. So, one day, you just never know.
I've got a new fundraising project so I can email it to you guys. It's a product that you can all
know about and tell everybody to buy; that it can bring more funds into the areas that I've been
hearing about tonight and for our youth and for our animals and for our seniors. So thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none. Robert
King? Gone. Liza Pierce?
MS. PIERCE: Good evening. I'm Liza Pierce and I'm here to express my support to the Maui
Economic Development Board, and I'm just catching my breath because I just came from the
Kihei Charter School. I'm also a member of the Board of the Kihei Charter School PTO or
Parents Teachers Organization. I'm expressing my support to Maui Economic Development
Board because here's my situation. I just got laid off from my job and like many others who are
in difficult situation right now we are trying to start a business, you know, a small business in
trying to find alternative ways just to support ourselves because of the unemployment going on
right now in the economy. And Maui Economic Development Board is here to support us. I've
been working with them, and I, myself, is being helped with starting that business. And also in
return I'm also working with them helping others. They are our front runner for teaching
businesses how to use or harness technology to improve their businesses. They're the first ones
who train the business people here on Maui how to use social media in their business. So there's
a lot of activity going on in that organization that I'm here to express support that keep it in the
budget, increase the budget if you can. And also, aside from that, on the business side, I'm also a
parent and Maui Economic Development Board also has this program - Women in Technology,
and one of their projects recently is engineering in the middle school. And my son participated
in this program and Kihei Charter School actually won here on Maui, and they represented Maui
to the State, they went to Honolulu. And so this kind of activity really helps our kids and so I
told myself you know if I'm a parent I would want to support this organization, so that's why I
volunteer to come here. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MS. PIERCE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Suzanne Antounian?
MS. ANTOUNIAN: Good evening and thank you for the opportunity to testify this evening. My name
is Suzanne Antounian and I'm here to speak in support of the Aging with Aloha Coalition. On
behalf of our residents at Kalama Heights Retirement Community, and our future residents that
have benefitted or will benefit from the services that Aging with Aloha has implemented since
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they started in 2002. Kalama Heights have been an active participant with the Aging with Aloha
Coalition and most recently is working with them to supplement the monies necessary to
implement the five wishes program. Is anyone familiar with the five wishes program? Well,
I've attached a copy and it's also in the book here. I've attached a copy of the five wishes in my
packet that I'm distributing, which I like to distribute. It is founded with the Aging with Aloha
2010 Resource Directory. As some of you may know, the five wishes document gives you a way
to control something very important and that is how you are treated if you are seriously ill.
Aging with Aloha is working to train volunteers and professionals on how to complete the forms
and offer the forms to individuals who can benefit from the program. In addition, Aging with
Aloha partners with Neighbors Helping Neighbors -- is anyone familiar with Neighbors Helping
Neighbors and the volunteer program? Our residents at Kalama Heights benefit from Neighbors
Helping Neighbors so very much for those who can't afford to have the extra care. Jerrie
Shapiro, Rita Barreras have helped us with Neighbors Helping Neighbors in allowing our
residents to live independently. Those that can't afford any care services from transportation to
companion services can now make a call and be paired with a volunteer that really does make a
difference in the life of a senior. In addition, educating high school students and graduates of
Maui CNA and Nursing program has been a wonderful asset to our community as well as for the
seniors on the island. I stand before you today to please ask you for the sake of our aging
population that you reconsider your 2012 budget to include Aging with Aloha. Now, we were
talking yesterday, don't send the lifeguard home when a senior tsunami is about to hit. So,
please, please, keep Aging with Aloha in your budget. The short-term upfront investment is for
a long-term savings. With all the budget cuts our seniors are facing, please give our seniors the
Aging with Aloha community partnership the money that they need to survive. Thank you. I
also have a letter from Venture Physical Therapy regarding Aging with Aloha. This money
represents a short-term upfront investment for a long-term savings. Aging with Aloha, through
the use of volunteers such as Neighbors Helping Neighbors and -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. ANTOUNIAN: --and dissemination of senior services through the seniors directory provide an
infrastructure that could be costly if absorbed by the Maui County Office on Aging because it is
an independent nonprofit, it absorbs much of the liability and bureaucracy that would decrease
the efficiency of those same services if provided by a government body. Aging with Aloha
continues to provide efficient improvement of the quality of life with the seniors in the
community This should be a priority of this community as it decreases the cost of liability for
senior services. So I would like to leave that. This is a fantastic book. We're all about to be a
senior 50. If you haven't gotten the book, very important. It should be Maui's number one top
on the booklist so I urge you to look at this, and I would like to leave a copy if you need one but
that's another form of resource from the Aging with Aloha. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none, thanks again.
Wayne Johnson?
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MR. JOHNSON: Aloha, Council members and friends. I just wanted to speak to you tonight about
MEO and the wonderful job they do with our community and all the support that they give our
community and all the help that they give. Right now they're helping me with their rental
assistance program. And without that help, me and my children would probably be homeless so
they really are a great resource that we need to keep funding, so please keep it in mind when you
guys do your budget to keep the money flowing to them. We're so very grateful for everything
they do and all their staff that they have there. I pray to God to give you guys blessings and
wisdom when you make your decisions. Thank you so much for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none, thanks again.
Leona Moore?
MS. MOORE: Hi, my name is Leona Moore. I go by Lee Moore. My husband and I have lived here
since . . . or had a home here property since '77, and so we've seen a lot of changes. We moved
here in '92, and we were very involved in volunteer work. With the . . . with Maui having and I
think Hawaii has the highest cost for electricity in the country because people will come up to
you and say that it's expensive here. And I might say, no, it's not but how much do you pay for
kilowatt hour. And I have said this to everyone I've greeted and I finally got an answer from
someone yesterday who was from Oregon, and he said, we're paying $.04 a kilowatt hour. So,
electricity is very high here. What is it now kilowatt hour -- $.42 a kilowatt hour? That's our
gas and everything. And with all . . . I don't know, with all the possible cuts, in fact, the latest I
heard is we volunteer, we give to a charity, my husband died in 2001, and we give, in fact, I gave
his convertible to Maui Coastal Land Company when he died and we give, we have given of our
time and our money. However, we do take these donations off of our income tax. And the latest
I heard is that Obama is only going to allow you to take 28 percent off. Now, that's going to cut
your donations way down. I know that. So I don't know. Some of these charities that I work
with and everything the integrity is much to be decided. I was working with one agency that . . .
now this all happened the same year, and embezzlement . . . embezzlement out the yang, yang
and so I said, okay, I will -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. MOORE: --be on another board that they get money. And so, I was on the RSVP Board and I
don't know the last I volunteered was over at the Maui County Building RSVP and Kalbert
Young, I got to know him very well and this was during all the time these lawsuits were going on
there. I just couldn't figure that. But anyway, there's several on your staff that know me and my
husband and I really feel that before you do anything is to audit -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. MOORE: --all of these charities and audit them regularly because there's also after this food I
don't know why they're embezzling so much, then found out at the time with the Food Bank
somebody went down there to the Food Bank and all we volunteers go with other, you know,
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occupation, and this man that went down there happen to be a retired Vice President of the
Deutsche Bank in New York and he was there two days. Then . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Moore, can you conclude, please?
MS. MOORE: Sure, I will. And also then the Director for the American Red Cross at that time
embezzled $75,000. And as far as the Hospice, the Hospice -MS. NAKATA: Five minutes.
MS. MOORE: --is concerned, there was suppose to be -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Moore, can you conclude?
MS. MOORE: --my house moved up there and that was not done. So, you know, I am retired medical
record librarian from St. Jude Children's Hospital in Memphis and I'm a retired nursing
supervisor from the VA Hospital in St. Louis.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Moore.
MS. MOORE: I thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Barbara Wallace?
MS. WALLACE: Good evening, my name is Barbara Wallace. I am the tennis person at Kalama Park.
I run the kids parks and rec. program down at Kalama. And I'm here this evening to speak for
the children at the park. What I feel like we need to do is we need to maintain what we have
already built here on Maui. So we've got a nice new park going up but we really need to
maintain what we already have and take care of it, and not one penny has been put in that park
and I've been down there for over five years running a program with several hundred children
that have gone through that program at a very, very, very low cost. And myself and my assistant
we put bazillion of hours into that park. We put a back board up so that anybody can use it. It's
a public court that anyone can use. It was at no cost to the County. We physically built it at my
house and had it all funded by somebody else. And there's pipes hanging out and if anybody has
been to the park lately, it's a lot cleaner and a nicer place to go than it used to be five years ago.
And so I'm just asking that we financially support what we already have and just clean up the
park, get the pipes out, because if it's a nice place to go families will use it, and they are using it.
And then the people that don't need to be there will leave because we can take our park back. So
I'm asking for . . . it's not a huge amount of money that we resurface the tennis courts and get the
fences fixed that are poking out so people can get hurt and it's a very minor amount of money
and it lasts a long time so you get a big result for a little bit of money. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Yep, we have to fix our
tennis courts all over Maui. Stacie Thorlakson?
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MS. THORLAKSON: Good evening, Council members. My name is Stacie Thorlakson. Pardon the
appearance but I just actually got off the tennis court myself. And I'm here to talk about a sport
that is growing in our community We've been listening to testifiers about business, the youth,
the aging, well, what about some fun and recreation? There's the Wells tennis courts that are
great. There's a lot of tennis tournaments there. You have Kula that you just recently provided a
beautiful tennis court, and Kihei needs some help. We need some TLC. And I want to stress
Barb and her assistant have done an incredible job with the youth and even in my little flyer here
that I created it even says the Junior Program. Well, as you know, I'm also on the General Plan
and we're talking about the year 2030. We need to focus on the future of our generations and we
want to keep the kids out and being active and not gaining obesity and getting them away from
drugs and the video games. So, what a great opportunity. Tennis is a growing sport and I think
we need to put some money to maintain our courts and our park. So from resurfacing you could
probably do about four courts for about $50,000. It may sound overwhelming right now,
however, it's a long lasting investment. Lights - would probably cost you about a thousand
dollars right now to repair the existing ones. And of course there's names that I could provide
and I'm sure you have connections as well. So, let's talk about health and wellness. Tomorrow,
the Mayor is going to be going out and doing a walk. You're promoting health and wellness in
the work place. Well, let's remember there's health and wellness right here that surrounds us
every day and let's put some money back into it, support not only the youth to playing tennis but
also the elderly generation. And visitors, do you know that if you do a Google Search and you
say community public or Kihei public tennis courts nothing comes up in the search engines? It's
amazing. So we need to also promote to the visitors because there's a lot of visitors that play
tennis. You can stay at Kalama Park for an hour and wait for a tennis court. It's becoming very
popular and it's also unfortunate some of the homeless folks are there and it's kind of scary at
night to be down there. So it would be nice to clean up the park and have a nice environment.
And in conclusion, I also wanted to share USTA which stands for United States Tennis
Association.com join forces with our first lady, Michelle Obama, for a campaign called Let's
Move, and it's all about promoting tennis for the youth. So, about Maui, let's move and let's
promote tennis for the youth and the adults. So thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again.
MS. THORLAKSON: Thank you. Oh, and if you want a copy, email and I can send it to you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jon Miller?
MR. MILLER: Aloha, Council. Thank you for coming down to Kihei. My name is Jon Miller and I'm
the President of the Kihei Community Association, and I'm here to talk tonight about South
Maui infrastructure. Although we have significant infrastructure requests, tonight I'm only
going to ask you this year for one item - that's going to be a bicycle path on our existing NorthSouth Collector corridor. When we look at South Maui, there's enormous demand for folks who
want to ride bicycles and we look at the facilities here, we have South Kihei Road and it's like
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taking your life in your own hands. And even so, when I look at the amount of people that are
riding bicycles on the road, it just shows me how much pint up demand we have that we need a
safe place for people to ride bicycles how much use it would get. And we look at some of the
long term implications of our infrastructure issues . . . how expensive it is to build new
roadways, how expensive it is to maintain those roadways. You put folks on bicycles which
makes so much sense in a community like Kihei which is flat, which doesn't get any rain, which
is relatively compact. And we have a North-South Collector Road that is completely either
County land or County easements running in the middle of the Piilani Highway and South Kihei
Road completely unobstructed right now for the most part except for a few areas, and we could
put a bicycle path there for relatively inexpensive that would last for 15 or 20 years, if we're
lucky enough to get that North-South Collector Road built at that point. So right now, the Kihei
Community Association is in the process of working with some volunteer estimators from
Goodfellow Bros. and work with Public Works. We're going to put together a concrete plan and
we think we can put together a bicycle path about 8 feet wide that would run all the way from
Wailea to North Kihei for about $1 million in funds. When you compare that to the six plus
million dollars you guys are putting forward in Paia, which is a much less populated area for
their bicycle path, I think it's a pretty small price to ask if you look at an area like Kihei where
you potentially have tons of tourists, traffic. We have an open corridor that the County has the
right to use that goes by all of our schools, all of our parks. We already have just in that area a
dirt path hundreds and hundreds of kids riding their bikes through the gulches, through the dirt
paths there to get to school. So we'll work with Public Works to give you a project that's going
to be as economical as possible to build. We'll work with Public Works to making sure we're
going to take care all of our land issues to make sure there's easements or right-of-ways for that.
We're working with Goodfellow Bros., we're going to deliver you a clear estimate of what that's
going to cost to build that, and we're going to ask for that in the upcoming budget. It's our one
infrastructure item for next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thanks again, Jon.
MR. MILLER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the last person to sign up for public testimony is Trevor Meyring.
MR. MEYRING: Good evening, Council, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Trevor Meyring. I just
want to thank you for all of our parks, their facilities. Me and my family we frequently use all
the parks, the pools, the beaches. I know that's a lot to provide the services, the people involved
with those services, especially the lifeguards. Lot of them I come to know. One thing I can say
is that with full confidence I can send my family and my friends to the pools and know that, well,
nothing is going to happen because we have great people providing safety and prevention, and
that's critically important to me. And I know it's critically important to a lot of people around . .
. visitors and people who live here. So I would like you to please consider especially when it
comes to some questionable facilities and services, such as the Makena State Park that you
consider to continue the service where it is critically needed. And that's it. Thanks again.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, question for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for
being here. Mr. Meyring was the last person to sign up for public testimony. Is there anyone out
there that want to provide public testimony at this time, please come up? State your name and
organization you represent. And once you're done if you can sign up with our Secretary here.
Go ahead.
MR. NELSON: Good evening, Council. My name is James Nelson. I'm a representative of the
Hawaiian Lifeguard Association. And I, too, am here to support the Makena State contract for
the ocean safety officers down there. Safety is tantamount for the visitors and ohana of Maui
County and I believe it would be a serious blow to the safety of the people down at Makena State
Park if we were to lose that contract. I know it's a contract with the State and you guys are
avenue to speak with the State so you guys are our voice. And on behalf of the Hawaiian
Lifeguard Association I just encourage you guys to keep an open rapport with them and just
make sure that the contract keeps going and we keep our people down there and we keep the
beach safe. That's all. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thanks
again.
MR. NELSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One last chance. Anybody want to provide public testimony at this time?
Seeing none coming up. I just want to say people from Kihei thank you for being here tonight
providing us with information in regards to Mayor Arakawa's Fiscal Year 2012 Budget. As you
know, we heard a lot tonight. Those of you that are in the budget and some of you that are not in
the budget. So it's going to be a daunting task for us to look at the budget itself and make sure
that whatever we provide the community is the right thing to do. So with that, thank you again.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Budget and Finance Committee meeting here at Kihei Community Center
is now adjourned.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 8:42 p.m.
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